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The following addendum hereby amends and/or modifies the Proposal Documents and 
specifications as originally issued for this project.  All proposers are subject to the provisions of this 
Addendum. 
 

Proposers shall acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 
Include this original form inside your proposal package. 

 
This Addendum consists of: 
 

 Clarification of bidding document:  Bidding document was advertised and posted on the Cobb County 
Website as RFQ (Request for Qualification). The correct bidding document is a RFP (Request for 
Proposal). 

 Revised Sealed Bid Label 
 Minutes of the Pre-Bid Meeting held on May 9. 2011 
 Questions submitted in writing 
 Pre-Bid Conference Sign In Sheet   
 

All bids must be received before 12:00 (noon) by the Bid Opening date.  Bids shall be delivered to Cobb 
County Purchasing Department, 1772 County Services Parkway, Marietta, GA  30008.   
 
Electronic / faxed bid response will not be considered. 
 
 
I acknowledge that I have received Addendum No. 1 
 

Sealed Bid # 11-5580 
Consultant Services for Northwest Atlanta Corridor  

Alternatives Analysis Study for CCT 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
               ____ 
Signature                            Date Sent to Purchasing 
 
                                                             ______ 
Please Print Name 
 

Please sign, date, and return this form ONLY to: 
Cobb County Purchasing Department 

Fax #: 770-528-1154 
E-Mail: purchasing@cobbcounty.org 

mailto:purchasing@cobbcounty.org


Addendum 1 
Consultant Services for the Northwest Atlanta Corridor 

Alternatives Analysis Study for CCT 
Request for Proposal, Sealed Bid #11-5580 

 
Pre-Bid Conference Minutes, May 9, 2011 

Responses to Questions submitted through May 17, 2011 
 
 
Daphne Bailey, Purchasing Supervisor, began the meeting introducing County staff.  In 
attendance were Mark Kohntopp, Interim Purchasing Director, Faye DiMassimo, Director, DOT, 
Jason Gaines, Planner III, DOT, Planning Division and Christine Watson, Administrative 
Specialist, Planning Division, DOT.  
 
Ms. Bailey continued with a discussion on the procedure on how to submit proposals.  Bids will 
be received on May 26, 2010, before 12:00 noon by the Purchasing Department.  Late bids will 
not be accepted.  Bids will be opened the same day at 2:00 p.m.  Bid opening can be viewed on 
Cobb County TV-23 or via the streaming web video at www.cobbcounty.org.  
 
Proposers should include the original proposal, ten copies and one CD (or flash drive) in their 
submittal package. The original should be clearly marked as such.  A label is included in the bid 
package which should be placed on the outside of the package.  The last day for questions is May 
17, 2011 at 5:00 p.m.  Questions may be emailed to purchasing@cobbcounty.org or can be 
submitted via fax at 770-528-1154. 
 
The minutes of this pre-bid meeting will be issued in the form of an addendum. Attendees were 
reminded to sign the sign-in sheet which will be included as a part of the addendum.  All 
addenda will be posted on the Purchasing website on the Cobb County web page.   
 
The meeting was turned over to Faye DiMassimo, Director, Cobb DOT 
 
Ms. DiMassimo indicated the focus today is on taking questions and answering them to the 
extent possible. Questions not answered today will be answered in the addendum.  She 
proceeded to review one part of the approach to this RFP which is a little unique and may be 
certainly the focus of some of the questions.  On page 14, under Section 4 Scope of Work and 
Methodology nine component areas are specified in the RFP.   
 
In terms of the response to the RFP, we are not looking for teams to respond. Firms may propose 
on one component, multiple components or all components.  But you propose as your own firm.  
We have been asked the question in advance of the procurement “Is it possible, for example, if 
two firms needed to come together to really make the whole on a particular component was that 
okay and yes, that is okay”.  But we are not looking for a complete team; we are looking for your 
qualifications and experience demonstrated for each of the components, multiple components.   
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And what Cobb DOT is going to do as the manager and owner of the project is select the best 
qualified proposer for each of those 9 categories which will then become the project team.  The 
firm that is selected for the Program Management component will serve as the prime. After that 
part has been completed, the process will be very normal, i.e., the Prime will hold the primary 
contract and all subcontracts will be held by the Prime. Because this process is a bit unusual, one 
of the things we are going to do is after the selection has been made is to give notification to the 
team who will then be given an opportunity to meet to discuss scope, cost negotiations and other 
issues. Subsequently, County staff will meet with the team to help finalize those discussions.    
 
Additionally, the County will be responsible for ensuring that our DBE goal is met on the 
project. If you are a DBE firm, that certainly needs to be included in your qualifications package, 
but in terms of the overall composition of the team, we will ensure we are meeting our overall 
goal for the project. 
 
Ms. DiMassimo then opened the floor to questions. 
 
The following questions were asked: 
 
Q1. On page 14 there is a statement that consultants should clearly identify in which of the 
nine areas they are submitting; are you looking for one proposal regardless of how many of those 
components? 
 
A. That is correct. 
 
Q2. To clarify the one teaming partner for an area, since it’s going into one proposal that 
means that you might have one teaming partner for one area and one teaming partner for another 
area so that your whole proposal does contain more than one teaming partner. (Is this allowed?) 
 
A. We wouldn’t frankly anticipate that, but it could. 
 

Mark Kohntoppp commented also. If there is a partnership, one of the partners has 
to be designated as the lead for that component. 

 
Q3. You raised a question in your opening statement, you said that after the team is selected 
they will get together and negotiate budget, does that imply that the budget amount that we 
would submit in the proposal could end up being different from the final budget amount? 
 
A.  Not necessarily.  While we are not prescribing how it should be done, what will need to 
happen at some point is the traditional process of negotiations between the relative 
commitments of budget value to each of the tasks.  For example, if your area of expertise is 
in a particular area there still will be budget negotiations that will need to take place 
between the prime and subs after the team has been formed. The RFP itself includes a copy 
of our Alternatives Analysis (AA) application in which we indicated to FTA what we 
thought was the relative value of each of the parts which should help guide you in 
developing a budget, although we are certainly open to your suggestion and thought on that 
as well. 
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Mark Kohntoppp also commented on this question.  The evaluation process criteria as 
stated in the document do not include any cost proposal.  You don’t need to submit and 
should not submit cost proposals in the original proposals.  Cost is not a part of the 
evaluation criteria.                      
 
Q4. If a firm were to bid on say three of the tasks would you either win all three tasks or 
would you select out of those three... Is it all or nothing? 
 
A.   It’s based on best qualified in each component, which means you could win 1, 2 or 
all 3.  Winning one doesn’t disqualify you from others but its best qualified based on which 
you presented in your proposal response for each of those components. 
 
Q5. You’re looking for identification of the nine areas, but not the priority by which we’d like 
to be preferred.  For example, say we were interested in 3, 4 and 7. Do you want us to rank those, 
or simply state each one you’re interested in? 
 
A. Simply state each component you are proposing on. Stating a priority is not 
required. 
 
Q6. Could you lead in one area and be a partner in another area? 
 
A. Yes, that is correct. 
 
Q7. If I was a DBE and prime in one area, do I still need to include another DBE as a portion 
of that? 
 
A. No.  We just need to know about your particular firm for those of you who are 
DBEs. This information will be used by County staff in the process of forming the team. 
 
Q8. Clarification on submittal of the budget. On page 8 which is section 3.6 “Proposal 
Format”, it says detailed outline schedule hours and costs break down by task is a required 
component of the submittal. 
 
A. Yes, that is correct. 
 
Q9. Does that get bound together in the same proposal document or is that to be bound 
separately and be submitted in a separate envelope? 
 
A. That would be bound in the proposal document because this is an RFP.    Again if 
you reviewed our AA application which is included in the RFP itself, the budget is 
established for the project. What that helps us to do, is be able to evaluate your 
interpretation of level of effort, i.e., if your firm sees it differently than we did. 
 
Q10. But that is to be bound in the proposal document, not to be bound separately? 
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A.  It should be bound in the proposal document. 
 
Q11. Mark you made a comment about the costs associated with this.  I’m confused as to what 
this statement here verses what you said earlier. 
 
A. Cost will not be one of the evaluation criteria; however, the composition of your 
proposal needs to include exactly what was described as far as your ideas and estimates. 
 
 
Mark Kohntoppp: Should you have additional questions, we will try our best to answer them.  
All questions must be submitted via email or fax, or you could write us a letter.  
 
One of the things that I want to make clear, as stated earlier, your proposals are due to 
Purchasing prior to 12 noon on the date of the bid opening which is Thursday, May 26, 2011.  
Bids will be opened at 2PM in this room; results will be posted for those who have submitted 
proposals on our website by 5:00 that day.   
 
We will only recognize vendors who have submitted proposals.  No evaluation or determination 
of ranking will be discussed at the bid opening.  We will accept NO ELECTRONIC COPIES of 
the bids.  Some other jurisdictions in this area do, we DO NOT.  Hard copy rules. 
 
Faye DiMassimo:  If you have any questions, please DO NOT email them to me or anybody in 
my department. They must go through Purchasing.   
 
Mark Kohntoppp:  NO PHONE CALLS will be accepted.  Every question must be in writing.   
 
Faye DiMassimo:  Did anybody have any concerns regarding the page limitations that are 
typically applied to this bidding process since this process is a little different? 
 
Q12. Does it stand no matter how many areas you submit on? 
 
A. [See note below revising response provided at the Pre-bid meeting] 
 
Note:  In section 3.6, Proposal Format, the RFP states that there is a 10 (8 ½ x 11) page limit of text  
for the Scope of Work and Methodology, however, the page limit may be exceeded if proposing on 
more than one of the nine components listed in Section 4.0 Methodology. Thus, when proposing on 
two or more components, the page limit may range from 10 up to a maximum of 20 (8 ½ x 11) pages 
of text although it is anticipated that only those firms proposing on all 9 components will reach the 
maximum page limit of 20. Please make note of this change to the RFP. 
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Written Questions Received by 5PM on May 17, 2011 

 
Q13: In regards to the subject RFP for Sealed Bid #11-5580, will the County make the 
referenced Sample Contract available to proposers for review before the due date for questions? 
 
A: No, a sample contract will not be provided at this time. 
 
 
Q14: Is a consultant able to submit on part of a category on page 14 of the RFP (e.g., traffic 
engineering instead of both traffic engineering/travel demand modeling)? 
 
A: Yes 
 
 
Q15: Can a consultant submit multiple proposals for the same category if the consultant has 
partnered with a different firm for each submittal? 
 
A: Yes 
 
 
Q16: Is pre-qualification with GDOT or Cobb County Government required for applicants 
bidding solely on the Public Opinion/Poll Survey area in the Scope of Work?  
 
A:  Yes, pre-qualification is required for all applicants, however, the requirement is 
only applicable at the time of contracting not at the time of bidding. Therefore, bids may be 
submitted while simultaneously pursuing pre-qualification. Please contact Lynn Lambert 
as soon as possible to obtain a Cobb DOT pre-qualification application package. She may 
be reached via email at lynn.lambert@cobbcounty.org or by phone at (770) 528-1616.   
 
 
Q17: Is there a projected budget for the Public Opinion/Poll Survey work?    
 
A: No specific budget for this work has been established. 
 
 
Q18: Approximately how many surveys are expected to be conducted for this project?   
 
A: At least two surveys are anticipated although the proposer may suggest a different 
approach to achieve the objective which is to gauge public interest and support for a 
project of this nature. 
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Q19: The RFP states the project will last between 18-24 months; what is the approximate time 
period that the surveys are expected to be conducted? 
 
A: The anticipated time period is one at the beginning and one towards the end if two 
surveys are conducted, however, as stated in the previous response, the proposer may 
suggest a different approach to achieve the objective which is to gauge public interest and 
support for a project of this nature. 
 
 
Q20: Is there a specific format for the surveys? (i.e. mail, Internet, phone).  
 
A: The proposer is free to suggest an approach they believe works best to achieve the 
objective 
 
 
Q21: Is there a specific format in which Cobb County would like to receive survey results? (i.e.   
Excel spreadsheet, etc.). 
 
A:  No specific format is requested at this time, but it is preferable the data be supplied 
by mutual agreement, in a format usable for future analyses. 
 
 
Q22: I would like to request a copy of the pre-proposal conference attendees. 
 
A: The list of attendees is attached. 
 
 
Q23.  There are three distinct activities included in Task 7:  

1) Development of capital costs;  
2) Development of operating and maintenance costs; and  
3) Financial analysis.   

Is a firm allowed to submit a proposal for only one of the three Task 7 activities? 
 
A.  A firm may submit on only one of the activities in component 7 in Section 4.0 (not 
Task 7 as stated in the question) or they may choose to team with another who can 
complete the full complement of activities required to accomplish the study component.  
 
 
Q24.  The RFP emphasizes the credentials and experience of the “Project Manager” throughout 
the RFP.  Our team is proposing on 3 of the tasks, and we are referring to our task leaders as 
“Task Managers”.  Do we still need to identify an overall Project Manager, or is each Task 
Manager considered to be the “Project Manager” for his task? 
 
A. Each proposer should have a designated lead person for the Firm responsible for 
oversight and QA/QC of the firm’s work in addition to specific Task Managers. 
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Q25.   At the pre-proposal meeting, it was stated that the County is going to be responsible for 
the DBE requirements for this project.  We took that to mean that there is no DBE requirement 
for consultants for this submittal.  As such, do we still need to fill out the DBE forms and just put 
N/A across them, since we’re not going to have any DBE firms on the team? 
 
A.  Yes, complete the forms with N/A across them unless there is DBE participation. 
The applicable forms will be completed or revised later as appropriate, after the Project 
Team has been assimilated and budget finalized. DBE firms should include their DBE 
Certification Forms. 
 
 
Q26. This question is about Section 2.2.1 (Pre-Qualification). Does Cobb County pre-qualify 
vendors who provide public opinion survey services? If so, what is the process for applying?  
 
A. Please see response to question #16. 
 
 
Q27.  Point of clarification: On page 15 of the RFP is listed within 3.6.4 (the last two bullet 
points), do you want this information for the team as a whole as well as for the specific project 
manager; can a team reference also be a PM reference? 
 
A. Three references should be provided for the firm (s) as well as the lead person for 
the firm (s) on this project.  If a firm is proposing on the Project /Program Management 
component for the project as described in section 4.0, three references are required for the 
Project Manager. 
 
 
Q28.  Are large format pages allowed, such as 11x17 foldouts? 
 
A.  See Question 12 response and note. Beyond what is stated in the response to 
Question 12, format and paper size is not specified. 
 
 
Q29.  Other than the scope section limit of 10 pages, is there a general page limit to the 
submittal? 
 
A.  See Question 12 response and note. Beyond what is stated in Question 12, there is no 
page limit. 
 
 
Q30.  If addenda are to be included in the envelope with the hard copies of the submittal, 
should they also be included on the CD-rom version? 
 
A.  Yes, the entire paper original submittal should also be submitted on a CD (or flash 
drive). 
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Q31.  If a firm is submitting on multiple components of the scope, do you expect separate org 
charts, cover letters, etc. or can a firm incorporate the different components within one proposal? 
 
A. Different components can be submitted in one proposal. 
 
 
Q32. Please clarify the requirement under 4.0 Methodology that “a firm may combine 
resources with no more than one other as required to completely address one or more of the 
required study components.”  Could Firm A team with Firm B for one component area, then 
team with Firm C on another?  For example, Firm A teams with Firm B for #6 Traffic 
Engineering/Travel Demand Modeling, and then Firm A teams with Firm C for #5 
Public/Stakeholder Outreach. 
 
A.  Yes, that is allowable. See question #15. 
 
 
Q33.  Is it possible to get a list of firms that attended the pre-proposal meeting held on May 9, 
2011 for RFP# 11-5580? 
 
A.  Yes, see question #22. 
 
 
Q34.     In item 3.10.2 of the Evaluation Criteria section the second bullet states Evaluation of 
client reference whether included in the proposal response or not.  Please clarify what the county 
means.  
 
A. Client references provided in the proposal will be evaluated, however, the County’s 
proposal evaluation team may elect to confirm and/or supplement those provided with 
additional reference information supplied by others. 
 
 
Q35.       Is there a sample contract associated with this RFP?  If so, please provide a copy.  
 
A.    See response to question #13. 
 
 
Q36.         Page 27, Section XXXII references Special Terms and Conditions. Are there any 
Special Terms and Conditions associated with this RFP?  
 
A.  There are no special terms and conditions associated with the RFP at this time 
which are not already stated in the RFP. 
 
 
Q37.    Will the pre-proposal meeting attendance sheets be made available?  
 
A. Yes, please see response to question #22. 
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Q38.        Section 4.0, Page 14  Can you please clarify the statement, "a firm may combine 
resources with no more than one other as required to completely address one or more of the 
required study components."  Does this mean that a firm is limited to only one other firm, or one 
other firm for each of the selected component areas?  
 
A. A firm is limited to joining only one other firm to propose on any one component. 
 
 
Q39.        Reference is made to Section 3.6.5.3 pertaining to DBE participation.  As was stated in 
the pre-proposal meeting, it is our understanding that the DBE Goal will be met through the 
County's selection process of the entire team.  If this is correct, are the specified 3A and 3B 
Attachment forms still required for inclusion in proposals? 
 
A.  Yes, please see response to question #25. 

 

Q40. Are proposers allowed to include a front cover, or should the Bid Submittal Form be the 
first page of the proposal package?    

A. Inclusion of a front cover is preferred. 

 

Q41. If proposing as a team, are the Certification regarding Lobbying and Certification 
regarding Debarment, Suspension, and other Responsibility Matters forms; and current year 
income statements and balance sheets required for both the prime and subconsultant, or just the 
prime consultant?  

A. Both Certifications are required for all firms. Current year income statements and 
balance sheets are required for the Prime or lead firm. 

 

Q42. Please clarify if the Scope of Work and Methodology section is limited to 10 pages, or 10 
sheets of paper (i.e. 20 typed pages).  

A.  The page limit refers to pages of text; not to sheets of paper. Please see response and 
note in question #12. 

Q43. Regarding teaming:  In section 3.6.1 the following appears 'Consortiums, joint ventures, 
or teams submitting Proposals, although permitted and encouraged, will not be considered 
responsive unless it is established that all Contractual responsibility rests solely with one 
Contractor or one legal entity, which shall not be a subsidiary or affiliate with limited resources. 
Each submittal shall indicate the entity responsible for execution on behalf of the team.'  Section 
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4.0 states 'however, a firm may combine resources with no more than one other as required to 
completely address one or more of the required study components.'  Please clarify if proposers 
are allowed propose as a team. 

A. A maximum of two firms may propose together on any one component or several 
components.  

 
Q44. Do teams proposing on more than one of the nine component areas need to submit each 
as a separate proposal?  If not, does the maximum page (10 page) requirement for scope and 
methodology change? 
 
A. Teams proposing on more than one component may submit one proposal which can 
exceed 10 pages. Please see question #12 regarding revised page limit requirement. 
 
 
Q45.  Regarding Attachment 1 – Lobbying: Is this form required by all firms (including sub 
consultants), or the Prime firm only?  
 
A.  Yes, required for all firms. See response to question #41. 
 
 
Q46. We are only pursing one component of the project, and our team does not have a firm that 
qualifies for DBE participation. How should we address (or fill out) the required DBE forms 
(Attachment 2, 3-A and 3-B) so that we meet the RFP requirements? 
 
A.  Please see response to question # 25. 
 
 
Additional information: 
 
Firms should submit with their proposals, documentation of prequalification with GDOT or 
Cobb DOT in component areas for which they are proposing, if applicable. 













SEALED BID LABEL 
 
 
 

 
 

SEALED BID ENCLOSED 
DELIVER TO: 

COBB COUNTY PURCHASING 
1772 County Services Parkway 

Marietta, GA  30008-4012 
________________________________________ 

 
SEALED BID # 11-5580          DATE: May 26, 2011 

 
BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE 12:00 NOON 

 
             DESCRIPTION: Request for Proposals 
              Consultant Service for Northwest Atlanta Corridor 
               Alternatives Analysis Study for CCT 
                          
 

PLEASE ATTACH LABEL TO OUTSIDE OF BID PACKAGE 
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